
i

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL, PENNS PLACE,
PETERSFIELD, HAMPSHIRE GU31 4EX

Telephone:  01730 266551
Website:  www.easthants.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 24 October 2019

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Penns Place, Petersfield, GU31 4EX

Membership:      Councillor S Pond (Chairman)

Councillors A Williams (Vice-Chairman), D Ashcroft, F Cowper, D Evans, 
A Glass, S Hunt, C Louisson, P Langley, S Schillemore, N Taylor, I Thomas 
and E Woodard

Reserves: Councillors K Budden, S Burns, K Carter, M Johnson                    
and T Maroney

(THE QUORUM FOR THIS MEETING IS 7 VOTING COUNCILLORS)

The business to be transacted is set out below: 

David Brown
Monitoring Officer

Date of Publication: Wednesday, 16 October 2019

Contact Officer: Lisa Papps 01730 234073
Email:  lisa.papps@easthants.gov.uk

Working in Partnership



ii

Page Nos
1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Confirmation of Minutes  

Please note that it is helpful if Councillors could give advance notice, 
to Democratic Services, of any questions they wish to raise in respect 
of the Minutes.

Minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2019, circulated under 
separate cover. 

3. Chairman's Announcements  

4. Declarations of Interest  

Councillors are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest which they may have in any item of 
business on the agenda no later than when that item is reached.  
Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any 
discussion of, or vote on, or discharge any function related to any 
matter in which you have a pecuniary interest as defined by 
regulations made by the Secretary of State under the Localism Act 
2011.  You must withdraw from the room or chamber when the 
meeting discusses and votes on the matter. 

Matters for Decision

5. Acceptance of Supplementary Matters  

6. Future Items  9 - 10

7. Report of the Director of Regeneration and Place  

PART 1 - East Hampshire District Council Items

Section I

7.(i)  27202/037/FUL/SAW - Applegarth Farm, Headley Road, 
Grayshott, Hindhead, GU26 6JL  
CALA Homes (Thames) Ltd

5 affordable single storey dwellings on the previously approved 
allotment gardens (approved under application Ref: 
27202/033)[Amended plan received 11/9/2019 and HRA on 
1/10/2019]

Associated documents - https://tinyurl.com/yapqvnaz

11 - 32

https://tinyurl.com/yapqvnaz


iii

Section II

There are no Section 2 items within this agenda

PART 2 - South Downs National Park Items

Section I

8.(i)  SDNP/19/03704/CND - New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne, 
GU34 3BY  
Mr Ashcroft

Variation of conditions number 1 and 3 of permission 
SDNP/14/01956/FUL  to allow substitution of plans A1621/LOC, 
A1621/LOC2, A1621/01 REV A , A1621/03 REV A, A1621/04 REV A , 
A1621/05 REV A and A1621/06 REV A with  new plans 
Block and Location Plans  -  1901-PL-001 A, Proposed Floor Plans  -  
1901-PL-004, Proposed Floor Plans  -  1901-PL-005, Approved and 
Proposed Elevations  -  1901-PL-006 A, Approved and Proposed 
Elevations  -  1901-PL-007 A, Approved And Proposed Elevations  -  
1901-PL-008 A, Approved and Proposed Elevations  -  1901-PL-009 
and Approved and Proposed Elevations  -  1901-PL-010, Approved 
floor plans - 1901-PL-002 A, Approved floor plans - 1901-Pl-003.

Associated documents - https://tinyurl.com/y6a9l4sn

33 - 50

Section II

There are no Section 2 items within this agenda

https://tinyurl.com/y6a9l4sn


iv



v

GENERAL INFORMATION

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 01730 234073.

Internet

This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the East 
Hampshire District Council website: www.easthants.gov.uk

Public Attendance and Participation

Members of the public are welcome to attend and observe the meetings. 
Many of the Council’s meetings allow the public to make deputations on 
matters included in the agenda. Rules govern this procedure and for further 
information please get in touch with the contact officer for this agenda. 

Disabled Access

All meeting venues have full access and facilities for the disabled.

Emergency Procedure

Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound.

PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY.

DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO.

No Smoking Policy

All meeting venues operate a no smoking policy on all premises and grounds

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/




  

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report considers planning applications submitted to the Council, as the Local 
Planning Authority, for determination.  It may also include items which are being 
determined by the Council on behalf of the South Downs National Park Authority. 

East Hampshire District Council is acting as an agent for the South Downs National Park 
Authority in accordance with an agreement signed under Section 101 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.  Under this arrangement the Council can determine 
planning applications on sites within the South Downs National Park area of the district 
on behalf of the National Park Authority.  Applications for the South Downs National 
Park are prefixed with the letters SDNP.  

2.1. SECTIONS IN THE REPORT 

The report is divided into two main parts;  

Part 1 – East Hampshire District Council 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which are 
being determined or considered by the Council as the Local Planning Authority.   

Part 2 – South Downs National Park Authority 

This part of the report considers applications and related planning matters which fall 
within East Hampshire District’s area of the South Downs National Park and which the 
Council is determining or considering on behalf of the South Downs National Park 
Authority.   

Each part of the report is split into two sections:   

Section 1 - Schedule of Application Recommendations  

This Section deals with planning applications that have been received by the Council 
and which require the Planning Committee to make a decision to grant or refuse 
permission.  Each item contains a full description of the proposed development, details 
of the consultations undertaken and summary of the responses received, an 
assessment of the proposal against current policy, a commentary and concludes with a 
recommendation.  A presentation with slides will be made to Committee.  Public 
participation is allowed on Section 1 items. 

Section 2 – Other matters  

This Section deals with other planning matters which are not the subject of a current 
application or are current applications which have already been determined and have 
been subject to a committee resolution to grant or refuse.  



  

No formal presentation will be made to Committee, unless required, and there will be 
no public participation.” 

2.2. All information, advice, and recommendations contained in this report are understood to 
be correct at the time of publication, which is more than one week in advance of the 
Committee meeting.  Because of the time constraints, some reports may have been 
prepared in advance of the final date for consultee responses or neighbour comment.  
Where a recommendation is either altered or substantially amended between preparing 
the report and the Committee meeting or where additional information has been 
received, a separate Supplementary Matters paper will be circulated at the meeting to 
assist Councillors.  This paper will be available to members of the public. 

3. PLANNING POLICY 

3.1. All planning applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise (Section 38(6) of the Town and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).  If the development plan contains material policies or 
proposals and there are no other material considerations, the application should be 
determined in accordance with the development plan.  Where there are other material 
considerations, the development plan will be the starting point, and other material 
considerations will also be taken into account.  One such consideration will be whether 
the plan policies are relevant and up to date.  The relevant development plans are the 
Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan, The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy 
2014, the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Housing and Employment Allocations 
2016 and the saved policies in the East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 
2006.  The Development Plan also includes made neighbourhood Plans. 

3.2. Although not necessarily specifically referred to in the Committee report, the relevant 
development plan will have been used as a background document and the relevant 
policies taken into account in the preparation of the report on each item.   

3.3. The East Hampshire District Joint Core Strategy and Local Plan have policies that 
contain criteria that must be met if a particular form of development is to be allowed.  
Paragraph 2 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February  2019 states:  
“Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in 
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.”   

3.4. The Council may sometimes decide to grant planning permission for development that 
departs from a development plan if other material considerations indicate that it should 
proceed.  One of these material considerations is whether the plan is up-to-date in terms 
of housing delivery.   

4. OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS  

4.1. Material considerations must be genuine planning considerations, i.e. they must be 
related to the development and use of land in the public interest.  They must also fairly 
and reasonably relate to the application concerned.  The Courts are the arbiters of what 
constitutes a material consideration.  All the fundamental factors involved in land-use 
planning are included, such as the number, size, layout, siting, design, and external 



  

appearance of buildings and the proposed means of access, together with landscaping, 
impact on the neighbourhood, and the availability of infrastructure.   

4.2. Matters that should not be taken into account are: 

 loss of property value  loss of view 
 land and boundary disputes  matters covered by leases or covenants 
 the impact of construction work  property maintenance issues 
 need for development (save in 

certain defined circumstances) 
 the identity or personal characteristics of 

the applicant 
 competition between firms,   or matters that are dealt with by other 

legislation, such as the Building 
Regulations (e.g. structural safety, fire 
risks, means of escape in the event of 
fire etc). - The fact that a development 
may conflict with other legislation is not a 
reason to refuse planning permission or 
defer a decision.  It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure compliance with 
all relevant legislation. 

 

4.3. Government statements of planning policy are material considerations that must be 
taken into account in deciding planning applications.  These statements cannot make 
irrelevant any matter that is a material consideration in a particular case.  Nevertheless, 
where such statements indicate the weight that should be given to relevant 
considerations, decision-makers must have proper regard to them.   

4.4. In those cases where the development plan is not relevant, for example because there 
are no relevant policies, the planning application should be determined on its merits in 
the light of all the material considerations.  

5. PLANNING CONDITIONS AND OBLIGATIONS  

5.1. The Council can impose conditions on planning permissions only where there is a clear 
land-use planning justi cation for doing so.  Conditions should be used in a way that is 
clearly seen to be fair, reasonable, and practicable.  One key test of whether a particular 
condition is necessary is if planning permission would have to be refused if the condition 
were not imposed.  Otherwise, such a condition would need special and precise 
justi cation.  

5.2. Where it is not possible to include matters that are necessary for a development to 
proceed in a planning condition the Council can agree a planning obligation under 
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.  Planning obligations should 
meet the Secretary of State's policy tests.  They should be:  
 necessary; 
 relevant to planning; 
 directly related to the proposed development; 
 fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; and 



  

 reasonable in all other respects. 

5.3. The use of planning obligations is governed by the fundamental principle that planning 
permission may not be bought or sold.  It is therefore not legitimate for unacceptable 
development to be permitted because of bene ts or inducements offered by a 
developer, which are not necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms.  Planning obligations are only a material consideration to be taken into account 
when deciding whether to grant planning permission, and it is for the Council to decide 
what weight should be attached to a particular material consideration.  

6. PLANNING APPEALS  

Applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State if an application is refused, or 
granted subject to conditions, or if it has not been determined within the speci ed period.  
Appeals are administered by the Planning Inspectorate - an executive agency reporting to 
the Secretary of State.  Appeals are considered by written representation, hearings, and 
public inquiries.  In planning appeals, it is normally expected that both parties will pay their 
own costs.  Costs can however, be awarded against the Council where it: 
 

(a) fails to determine a planning application in good time – the Council must have good 
planning reasons to explain and justify why it did not make a decision in time. 

(b) fails to carry out adequate prior investigation consistent with national policy and 
guidance. 

(c) prevents or delays development that should clearly be permitted having regard to 
the development plan, national policy statements and any other material 
considerations.  It is the Councils responsibility to produce evidence to show 
clearly, why the development cannot be permitted. Reasons for refusal must be 

 complete,  
 precise,  
 specific 
 relevant to the application, and 
 supported by substantiated evidence.  

(d) fails to show reasonable planning grounds for taking a decision contrary to officer 
advice  

(e) gives too much weight to neighbour objections - the extent of local opposition is not, 
in itself, a reasonable ground for resisting development. To carry significant weight, 
opposition should be founded on valid planning reasons that is supported by 
substantial evidence. 

(f) relies on unsubstantiated objections where they include valid reasons for refusal 
but rely almost exclusively on local opposition from third parties, through 
representations and attendance at an inquiry or hearing, to support the decision. 

(g) fails to show that it has considered the possibility of imposing relevant planning 
conditions to allow development to proceed. 

 
The following are examples given in Planning Practice Guidance of circumstances that 
may lead to an award of costs against the Council: 
(a) ignoring relevant national policy – for example, the advice in NPPF, 
(b) where a proposal is contrary to the development plan but the relevant policy has 

been superseded by national policy which advocates an entirely different approach.  



  

An example might be ignoring national advice in paragraph 77 of NPPF which may 
allow some market housing to bring forward a rural affordable housing exception 
site, 

(c) acting contrary to, or not following, well-established case law, 
(d) persisting in objections to a scheme, or part of a scheme, which has already been 

granted planning permission or which the Secretary of State or an Inspector has 
previously indicated to be acceptable, 

(e) not determining like cases in a like manner – for example, imposing an additional 
reason for refusal on a similar scheme to one previously considered by the 
planning authority where circumstances have not materially changed, 

(f) failing to grant a further planning permission for a scheme the subject of an extant 
or recently expired permission where there has been no material change in 
circumstances, 

(g) refusing to approve reserved matters when the objections relate to issues that 
should already have been considered at the outline stage, 

(h) imposing a condition that is not necessary, precise, enforceable, relevant to 
planning, relevant to the development permitted or reasonable and thereby does 
not comply with the advice in the Planning Practice Guidance on the use of 
conditions in planning permissions, 

(i) requiring the appellant to enter into or complete a planning obligation which does 
not accord with the tests in para 56 of the NPPF, or 

(j) not imposing conditions on a grant of planning permission where conditions could 
effectively have overcome the objection identified – for example, in relation to highway 
matters. 

7. THE SECRETARY OF STATE'S ROLE 

7.1 The Secretary of State has reserve powers to direct the council to refer an application to 
him/her for decision. This is what is meant by a 'called-in' application. In general, this 
power of intervention is used selectively and the Secretary of State will not interfere with 
the jurisdiction of local planning authorities unless it is necessary to do so.  The 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the type of development proposals that directs 
local authorities to consult with the Secretary of State before granting planning 
permission. 

8. PROPRIETY 

8.1 Councillors are elected to represent the interests of the whole community in planning 
matters and not simply their individual Wards.  When determining planning applications 
they must take into account planning considerations only.  This can include views 
expressed on relevant planning matters.  Local opposition or support for a proposal is 
not in itself a ground for refusing or granting planning permission, unless it is founded 
upon valid planning reasons.  

9. PRIVATE INTERESTS  

9.1 The planning system does not exist to protect the private interests of one person against 
the activities of another, although private interests may coincide with the public interest 
in some cases.  It can be difficult to distinguish between public and private interests, but 
this may be necessary on occasion.  The basic question is not whether owners and 



  

occupiers of neighbouring properties would experience nancial or other loss from a 
particular development, but whether the proposal would unacceptably affect amenities 
and the existing use of land and buildings that ought to be protected in the public 
interest. Covenants or the maintenance/protection of private property are therefore not 
material planning consideration. 

10. OTHER LEGISLATION  

10.1 Non-planning legislation may place statutory requirements on planning authorities, or 
may set out controls that need to be taken into account (for example, environmental 
legislation, or water resources legislation).  The Council, in exercising its functions, also 
must have regard to the general requirements of other legislation, in particular:  

 The Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, which prevents discrimination directly 
or indirectly in any functions, carried out by public authorities.  

 The Equality Act 2010, which places a duty on all those responsible for providing a 
service to the public not to discriminate against disabled people by providing a 
lower standard of service.  

 The Human Rights Act 1998, which incorporated provisions of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) into UK law.  The general purpose of the 
ECHR is to protect human rights and fundamental freedoms and to maintain and 
promote the ideals and values of a democratic society.  It sets out the basic rights 
of every person together with the limitations placed on these rights in order to 
protect the rights of others and of the wider community.  The speci c Articles of the 
ECHR relevant to planning include Article 6 (Right to a fair and public hearing), 
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence), 
Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (Right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property).  All planning 
applications are assessed to make sure that the subsequent determination of the 
development proposal is compatible with the Act.  If there is a potential conflict, this 
will be highlighted in the report on the relevant item. 

  
11. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

11.1 The Council has adopted a scheme for the public to speak on all Section 1 items. 
Where public speaking is allowed, the applicant or their representative, the local 
Parish/Town Council, and one objector may address the Committee, for a maximum of 
three minutes each, by prior invitation.  Members of the public wishing to speak must 
have contacted the Meeting Administrator in Democratic Services at least 48 hours 
before the meeting.  It is not possible to arrange to speak to the Committee at the 
Committee meeting itself. 

11.2 For probity reasons associated with advance disclosure of information under the Access 
to Information Act, neither the applicant, Parish Council, nor an objector will be allowed 
to circulate, show or display further material at, or just before, the Committee meeting.   

12.  INSPECTION OF DRAWINGS 

12.1 All drawings are available for inspection on the internet at www.easthants.gov.uk and at 



  

the Planning Development Reception area during our normal office hours.  The files and 
drawings will also be available 30 minutes prior to the start of meeting for Councillors to 
inspect. 

13. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  However, in the event 
of an appeal, further resources will be put towards defending the Council’s decision.  
Rarely and in certain circumstances, decisions on planning applications may result in 
the Council facing an application for costs arising from a planning appeal.  Officers will 
aim to alert Members where this may be likely and provide appropriate advice in such 
circumstances. 

 
Simon Jenkins 
Director of Regeneration and Place 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 the individual planning application file (reference quoted in each case) 
 the Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan 2013 
 East Hampshire Joint Core Strategy 2014 
 East Hampshire Employment & Housing allocations Plan 2016 
 East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review 2006 - Saved Policies 
 Adopted Neighbourhood Plans: Alton, Bentley, Medstead & Four Marks and 

Petersfield 
 Government advice and guidance contained in circulars, National Planning Policy 

Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and ministerial statements 
 any other document specifically referred to in the report. 





PLANNING COMMITTEE

24 October 2019

POSSIBLE FUTURE ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE / SITE VISIT

The following items are for INFORMATION purposes only.  They comprise major 
applications that have either been submitted some time ago but are still not yet ready for 
consideration or are recently received applications that are not ready to be considered by 
the Committee or determined under the Scheme of Delegation.  The purpose of this report 
is to highlight the receipt of these applications to ensure that any issues that they raise are 
highlighted at an early stage.  Councillors may also suggest possible future site visits 
under this item.

Reference Description and Address
1

27887/009 Replacement car barn with storage above, following 
demolition of existing car barn.

Keepers Lodge, Basingstoke Road, Alton, GU34 4AB

This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too early 
to make any decision as to how this application will be 
determined.

2
58491 Construction of American Barn, Indoor Arena, Lunge Pen, 

Horse Walker and associated works including change of use 
to equine use.

Nodwood Nursery, Churt Road, Headley, Bordon, 
Farnham, GU10 2QS

This application has only just recently been submitted and 
consultations and notifications are under way.  It is too early 
to make any decision as to how this application will be 
determined.







PART 1

EAST HAMPSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

Applications to be determined by the
Council as the Local Planning Authority

 24 October 2019

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

Item No.: 1
The information, recommendations, and advice contained in this report are correct as at the 
date of preparation, which is more than one week in advance of the Committee meeting. 
Because of the time constraints some reports may have been prepared in advance of the final 
date given for consultee responses or neighbour comments.  Any changes or necessary 
updates to the report will be made orally at the Committee meeting.

PROPOSAL 5 affordable single storey dwellings on the previously approved 
allotment gardens (approved under application Ref: 
27202/033)[Amended plan received 11/9/2019 and HRA on 1/10/2019]

LOCATION: Applegarth Farm, Headley Road, Grayshott, Hindhead, GU26 6JL
REFERENCE: 27202/037 PARISH: Grayshott
APPLICANT:  CALA Homes (Thames) Ltd
CONSULTATION EXPIRY: 08 August 2019
APPLICATION EXPIRY: 03 September 2019
COUNCILLOR: Councillor F E Cowper
SUMMARY RECOMMENDATION: PERMISSION

The Local Ward Member has requested that this application is referred to the Planning 
Committee for determination on the grounds that the proposed loss of the green space 
for allotments is very disappointing and a suitable alternative use considered.   



The number of dwellings on this exception site were agreed and should remain as they 
are as there is no defined need for additional housing in Grayshott.

Site and Development

Application Site

The application site extends to 0.21 ha and comprises a part of the "Applegarth Vale" 
development which is currently being developed to provide 80 new dwellings.  

The Applegarth Vale site is located on the western edge of Grayshott to the north-eastern 
side of Headley Road and to the rear of the Applegarth Farm shop / café.  The former 
Grayshott Golf Centre driving range is situated to the north-west of the site, with established 
residential development fronting Headley Road and in Waggoners Way to the east.  To the 
west lies Ludshott Common and to the north-east Whitmoor Hanger, an area of semi-natural 
ancient woodland.

The site is part of a larger greenfield site and has planning permission for use as allotments, 
as part of the overall residential scheme. 

Proposed Development

The application seeks full planning permission for the provision of 5 detached bungalows.  
dwellings.  The submitted plans show that dwellings would be arranged as a small courtyard 
of 4 dwellings, with a further dwelling to the east, adjacent to a terrace of affordable units. The 
dwellings are shown to be of all the same traditional design with a cross gabled roof and 
projecting bay window to the rear.   Each dwelling would have a private amenity area to the 
rear.  Materials are indicated as facing brick with brick plinth detail feature, some vertical tile 
hanging to the bay under a plain clay tile roof. 

The development would utilise the approved vehicular access from Headley Road and the 
internal estate road, as previously approved, to serve the allotments.  Parking would be 
provided on hard-standing areas to the front of the dwellings, with 2 spaces per dwelling and 
a further 2 visitor's spaces. 

Amended plans revising fenestration and layout details and a supplementary Habitats 
Regulations Assessment were provided during the course of the application.

Relevant Planning History
 

27202/030 Outline - Expansion to the existing restaurant 
and farm shop with the addition of three new 
facilities including rural enterprise centre, 
cookery school, soft play facility and outdoor 
play space with car parking and landscaping 
improvements.

Outline Permission –
5 June 2015



27202/031 Residential development of 80 dwellings (44 
affordable homes and 36 market price homes) 
with garages and parking spaces, childrens' 
play area, new vehicular access, natural green 
space, open space and parking area.

Outline Permission –
17 August 2016

27202/032 Deed of Variation to section 106 agreement on 
application 27202/031 - substitute a revised 
plan at appendix 1

Permission –
12 March 2018

27202/033 Reserved matters pursuant to outline 
application 27202/031 - Residential 
development of 80 dwellings (44 affordable 
homes and 36 market price homes) with 
garages and parking spaces, children's' play 
area, new vehicular access, natural green 
space, open space and parking area

Approval – 
28 February 2018

27202/034 Change of use of land to Suitable Alternative 
Natural Greenspace (SANG)

Permission - 
10 October 2017

Development Plan Policies and Proposals

The Draft version of the Local Plan (2017 -2036) was published under Regulation 18 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations (2012) for public 
consultation from 5 February to 19 March 2019. Paragraph 48 of the NPPF (2019) sets out 
the circumstances when emerging planning policies may be given weight in determining 
planning applications. Based on the current early stage of preparation, the draft Local Plan 
policies are currently afforded no weight. Following the close of the public consultation 
depending on the level of objection received on individual policies they may begin to carry 
limited weight.

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy (2014)
CP1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
CP2 - Spatial Strategy
CP10 - Spatial strategy for housing
CP11 - Housing tenure, type and mix
CP14 - Affordable housing for rural communities
CP17 - Protection of open space, sport & recreation & built facilities
CP19 - Development in the countryside
CP20 - Landscape
CP21 - Biodiversity
CP22 - Internationally designated sites
CP23 - Gaps between settlements
CP24 - Sustainable construction
CP25 - Flood Risk
CP26 - Water resources/ water quality
CP27 - Pollution



CP29 - Design
CP31 - Transport
CP32 - Infrastructure

East Hampshire District Local Plan: Second Review (2006)
H14 - Other Housing Outside Settlement Policy Boundaries
T3 - Pedestrians and Cyclists
P7 - Contaminated Land
Vehicle Parking Standards SPD July 2018
Joint Wealden Heaths Phase II Special Protection Area SPD July 2018

Planning Policy Constraints and Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) February 2019

The NPPF sets out three overarching objectives (economic, social and environmental) that 
should be performed by the planning system to achieve sustainable development.

In this instance the following sections of the NPPF are considered to be particularly relevant 
to the consideration of the development;
 Section 2 - Achieving sustainable development
 Section 4 - Decision making
 Section 5 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes.
 Section 9 - Promoting sustainable transport
 Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places
 Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

Consultations and Town/Parish Council comments

EHDC Arboricultural Officer – No objection provided the Tree Protection Plan is strictly 
adhered to and the existing protective fencing is not removed and remains in situ.

EHDC Drainage Consultant – Objection pending receipt of further details, to include a 
drainage layout plan, run-off calculations for the peak event, all supported by site percolation 
tests to BRE 365.  A detailed maintenance management plan, generally in accordance with 
the SUDS Manual is also required.

EHDC Housing Officer – Supports the proposal.

EHDC Landscape Officer – No landscape objection. A condition is recommended for planting 
details.

EHDC Refuse – Provides comments on the Council’s arrangements for refuse collection.  

EHDC Traffic Management – No adverse comments to make on this application.



HCC Ecology – No concerns with regard to ecological matters.

HCC Highways – No objection.

Grayshott Parish Council – OBJECTION. 

The original scheme was permitted based on the S106 agreement. The S106 agreement 
must be fulfilled in the same manner that the housing must be delivered. No evidence has 
been provided on unmet demand for affordable single storey homes and our understanding is 
that Grayshott has no demand after the affordable homes permitted under 2720/033 have 
been built and allocated. We do not support this loss of green space to any form of housing. 

Grayshott Parish Council objected to the first outline application (/031) but raised no objection 
to the second application. This "change of heart” was after a careful and difficult re-evaluation 
of the balance between meeting the housing need (affordable homes for local families) and 
protecting the countryside and the willingness of the applicant to address the range of 
infrastructure implications raised by the proposals. This application for 5 single storey 
affordable homes does not warrant any further loss of green space.

Representations

The 45 letters of representation received to this application from third parties, raise objections 
to the development, as summarised below:

a) The development would result in more traffic, noise and light pollution compared with 
the allotments;

b) additional overloading of local amenities, which are well separated from the 
development;

c) the allotments should be retained, the existing sites are too far from Applegarth;
d) further erosion of the Headley Down / Grayshott Gap and green space;
e) the dwellings would not be affordable and there is no local need;
f) not in keeping with the surrounding area;
g) could cause traffic problems in the area;
h) not in accordance with the planning conditions on the original approval; and
i) potential for further development creep.
[Officer note: this is not part of the application, which must be considered on its own 
merits]

Determining Issues

1.  Principle of the proposed development / affordable housing
2.  Loss of allotment site
3.  Siting, design, and visual impact
4.  Impact on the Local Gap
5.  Vehicular access and parking arrangements.
6.  Impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents.



7.  Impact on biodiversity.
8.  Impact on trees.
9.  Drainage.
10. Sustainable Construction
11.  Planning Obligations and CIL

Planning Considerations 

1.  Principle of the proposal / affordable housing

Saved policy H14 of the Local Plan: 2nd Review, identifies the application site as falling 
outside of the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) for Grayshott and thus is within an area 
where the Countryside policies of the Development Plan apply.  Policy CP2 (Spatial Strategy) 
directs new development growth and seeks to make the best use of previously developed 
land and buildings within existing built up areas.  Policy CP10 (2) (Spatial Strategy for 
Housing) seeks the provision of new dwellings within defined settlement policy boundaries of 
towns and villages where it is consistent with maintaining and enhancing their character and 
quality of life to meet the housing provision requirements of the development plan.  Policy 
CP19 (Countryside) restricts development in the Countryside to that with a proven need for a 
countryside location.

In this instance the applicant is promoting the scheme as 100% affordable housing under the 
rural exceptions policy.  Policy CP14 of the JCS allows for residential sites to come forward 
outside of the defined settlement policy boundaries if;

ii) it provides affordable housing for local people who are unable to obtain 
accommodation on the open market;

iii) there is a proven local affordable housing need;
a) the need cannot be met within the settlement to which that need relates;
b) the settlement provides a range of local services and facilities, or has accessibility 

to larger settlements nearby which provide a wider range of services and 
facilities;

c) the site is modest in scale and relates well, in terms of location and in size, to the 
existing settlement;

d) it provides dwellings which will be available as affordable housing for local people 
in perpetuity; 

The application proposes the provision of 5 affordable dwellings which are being proposed as 
shared ownership units.  In addition, these would comprise wheelchair accessible adapted 
living units.

The Council’s Housing Development Officer has confirmed that the tenure of the bungalows 
would be shared equity, which is a form of Intermediate housing which falls within the NPPF’s 
affordable housing definition.  The Housing Officer confirms support for any form of 
Intermediate housing on this site, as long as the homes are genuinely affordable.



Grayshott has seen a lot of development recently with the adjacent scheme at Applegarth 
Vale and another affordable housing scheme with planning permission at Crossways Road, 
being delivered by Grayshott and District Housing Association.  Although this is a rural 
exception site, the expectation is that the current rented need will be met at the Applegarth 
Vale and Crossways Road developments. Housing need figures can fluctuate over time; 
however, the table below shows the current need in Grayshott and what is being delivered on 
these 2 sites.

Bedroom 
need

Hampshire 
Home Choice 
– rented need

Help to Buy 
South – 

Intermediate 
need

Affordable 
Housing 

proposed - 
Applegarth 

Vale

Affordable 
Housing 

proposed - 
Crossways 

Road
1 bed 18 8 8 8
2 bed 11 18 21 6
3 bed 5 14 15 0
4 bed 0 0 0 0
Total 34 40 44 14

The 5 bungalows have been designed to be fully wheelchair accessible. The intention is to 
identify 5 households for these bungalows at an early stage, so the homes can be built out to 
their specific needs. This will provide an opportunity for households within East Hampshire to 
purchase a fully adapted home at a much more affordable price.

There are currently 8 households registered with Help to Buy South with a connection to East 
Hampshire that require wheelchair accessible accommodation, with a further 24 households 
registered on Hampshire Home Choice.

In summary, the Housing Officer is satisfied the need for rented accommodation will be met 
with the outstanding developments within Grayshott.  A 100% Intermediate affordable housing 
scheme offers a unique opportunity to provide fully adaptable affordable accommodation 
which will help meet the needs of local households within East Hampshire.  As such, the 
Housing Officer is in support of the scheme.

The proposal is, therefore, in accordance with Policy CP14 of the Joint Core Strategy, with 
the affordable housing to be secured through a Planning Obligation.  The principle of the 
development of affordable units in this Countryside location is, therefore accepted.

2.  Loss of Allotments

The site currently has planning permission for the provision of allotments, as part of the 
approval of the overall housing development.  The provision of the allotments is secured 
under Clause 9 of the S.106 agreement (dated: 5 August 2016), which requires the owner not 
to occupy or permit occupation of more than 39 dwellings on site until the allotments have 
been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the Council.



In addition, Condition 15 of the outline planning permission (27202/031) requires that “The 
development hereby approved shall make on-site provision within the development for a 
childrens’ play area and allotments which comply with the Council’s adopted size standards 
for such facilities.” 

Condition 5 of the Reserved Matters approval requires that “No dwelling hereby permitted 
shall be first occupied until full details of the communal allotment building have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These details shall 
include details of the internal storage facilities. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed
details and completed to this specification prior to the first occupation of the 39th dwelling on 
this site.”

Allotment areas are safeguarded from loss under Policy CP17.  This policy states:
Development that results in the loss of a sport, recreation or play facility will only be 
permitted where it can be demonstrated that:
a) there is a surplus of provision according to the local open space and built facilities 

standards; or
b) alternative facilities of equal or better quality and quantity can be provided in an 

equally accessible location.

The Design and Access Statement seeks to justify the loss on the basis that there is currently 
sufficient allotment capacity within the Parish, on the two sites within 2.5km of the site without 
the need for the site to address the demand for allotments.  

Whilst it is noted that Grayshott Parish Council has objected to the application on the loss of 
green space, no objection is raised to the loss of the allotments themselves.

At Developer Liaison meetings, held with the Local Planning Authority / the Parish Council 
and the applicant, the Parish Council has agreed that the provision of allotments on the site 
are not needed as the village has sufficient allotments to meet current demand and new 
demand from residents of Applegarth Vale.  As such, various options were explored to assess 
other opportunities for alternative facilities on the site, including a community orchard and 
community garden in association with Applegarth Farm, although none of these was 
considered appropriate.  It is also noted that there is a significant area of open green space 
(7.25 Ha) approved as part of the main development comprising a SANGS incorporating an 
equipped children’s play area, which is in close proximity to the site.  The allotment site is on 
the edge of the development and its practical use as an additional area of open space is not 
considered necessary or practical given the significant area of green space which has been 
provided as part of this development.

It is concluded that whilst the proposal would result in the loss of allotments, it has been 
confirmed that there is sufficient capacity for allotments in the area and no other suitable 
community recreational use has been identified, thus criterion (a) of Policy CP17 is satisfied.  
There is also a significant area of SANGS provided as part of the main Applegarth 
development, thus there is not considered to be a deficiency of public open space in the area.  



It is also noted that the proposal would deliver 5 units of affordable accommodation, which 
would be a public benefit.  On balance, it is concluded that the loss of the allotments to 
affordable housing is accepted.

3. Siting, design, and visual impact

Policy CP29 of the JCS requires new development to respect the character, identity and 
context of the district’s towns, villages and countryside, with criterion (a) requiring new 
development to seek exemplary standards of design with a high quality external appearance 
that respects the area’s particular characteristics.  Criterion (d) requires the layout and design 
of new development to be sympathetic to its setting in terms of its scale, height, massing, and 
density, with criterion (e) requiring the use of good quality materials to make a positive 
contribution to the area.  

In section 12 of the NPPF, the Government attaches great importance to the creation of high 
quality buildings and places.  Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 
creates better places in which to live and work and helps makes development more 
acceptable to communities.  Planning decisions should ensure developments: are visually 
attractive, sympathetic to local character and history, establish a sense of place, optimise the 
site’s potential, and create places which are safe, inclusive and accessible. 

Layout and visual impact 

The submitted plans show that dwellings would be arranged as a small courtyard of 4 
dwellings, with a further dwelling to the east, adjacent to a terrace of affordable units. The 
dwellings are shown to be of a similar traditional design with a cross gabled roof and 
projecting bay window to the rear.   Each dwelling would have a private amenity area to the 
rear.  Materials are indicated as facing brick with brick plinth detail feature, some vertical tile 
hanging to the bay under a plain clay tile roof.

The site is located on the western edge of the Applegarth Farm development, on a site 
approved for allotments and associated parking.  The development would continue the built 
form of development along the access drive, with a frontage dwelling and a small courtyard 
form.  The siting and layout of the dwellings would respect the form of the neighbouring 
development and would have an acceptable relationship internally facing onto a central 
parking court. 

Each of the dwellings would be provided with a private amenity area to the rear, with a depth 
of approximately 8 - 10 metres, albeit with a substantial width of between 12 – 20 metres.  
This would provide an acceptable level of amenity space for future occupiers.

Dwelling appearance and scale

The bungalows are shown to be of a traditional design with pitched gabled roofs and a 
projecting bay.  



Materials are indicated as facing brick with some vertical tile hanging on a brick plinth, under 
a plain clay tile roof.  The design and materials are considered to be acceptable and would 
complement the neighbouring development. 

The dwellings are all shown to be of single storey scale.  This accords with previous 
discussions whereby this location was considered to be prominent when viewed from Headley 
Road, with the indicative Masterplan for the outline permission showing single storey 
dwellings in this location.  

Overall the properties are considered to be an acceptable standard of external appearance 
and scale.

Landscaping

The Council’s Landscape Officer has raised no objection to the proposal.  A condition is 
recommended to secure details of a hard and soft landscaping scheme.

Therefore, to conclude, the siting, layout, and scale and external appearance of the 
development is considered to be acceptable and in keeping with the character and 
appearance of the area.  As such the proposal is considered to be in accordance with Policies 
CP20 and CP29 of the JCS, as well as design advice contained within the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

4. Impact on the Local Gap

The site is also located within a “Local Gap” separating Grayshott and Headley Down 
identified by Policy C11 (Gaps between Settlements) of the EHDLP: Second Review. This 
policy is not a “saved” policy and has been superseded by Policy CP23 (Gaps between 
Settlements) of the JCS, which reconfirms the principle of this Gap to prevent the 
coalescence of Grayshott and Headley Down. Paragraph 7.33 of Policy CP23 advises that 
the precise boundaries for these gaps will be identified in future Local Plans, which will be 
undertaken as part of the emerging Local Plan. 

Paragraph 7.29 confirms that the gaps have not been identified for the express purpose of 
protecting the countryside or landscape, but as a planning tool designed to shape the patterns 
of towns and villages, to provide a clear break between settlements to maintain a sense of 
place.

In landscape terms the site is located between Applegarth Farm Shop, with a copse to the 
rear.  The former Grayshott Driving Range is to the west, and approved dwellings to the east.  
From viewpoints within Headley Road, the development would be viewed though gaps in the 
trees along the roadside boundary, in particular from the area around the entrance into 
Applegarth Farm and to the north-west of the entrance, due to a lack of understorey in this 
area. The Masterplan for the original outline planning permission for the Applegarth Vale 
development showed single storey dwellings in this location, to minimise the visual impact of 
the development.  



This was accepted, although the subsequent reserved matters application showed allotments 
to be sited in this location.  It is also noted that the Council’s Landscape Officer has no 
objection to the proposal.  

In effect, the Local Planning Authority has previously approved the siting of single storey 
dwellings in this location, therefore it is considered that no objection on landscape or local gap 
terms can be raised. 

5. Vehicular access and parking arrangements.

The development would utilise the approved vehicular access from Headley Road and the 
internal estate road, as previously approved, to serve the allotments.  Parking would be 
provided on hard-standing areas to the front of the dwellings, with 2 spaces per dwelling and 
a further 2 visitor’s spaces.

The Council’s adopted Vehicle Parking Standards SPD requires dwellings with 2 bedrooms to 
provide 2 off-street parking spaces, in addition visitor parking should be provided on the basis 
of 1 space per 5 dwellings.  The vehicle parking provision would be in accordance with the 
SPD and Officers advise that this provision would need to be secured through a condition.  
No cycle parking is shown and 2 spaces per dwelling is required by the SPD.  There are 
reasonable sized garden areas shown for the dwellings, thus sheds could be provided within 
the site, secured through a condition.

The Local Highway Authority has noted that the internal roads leading to the site are not 
going to be offered up for adoption, however, the applicant must ensure that the internals are 
built to adoptable standards.  Officers advise this could be covered through an informative 
note to the applicant.

In terms of the impact to the highway, the Local Highway Authority does not believe that the 5 
additional dwellings would have a severe detrimental impact to the operation and safety of the 
local highway network.

The Local Highway Authority recommend no objection to the proposals, although advise the 
Council’s Refuse Team is consulted.

The Council’s Traffic Management Team has advised that it has no adverse comments to 
make on this application. 

The Council’s Refuse and Recycling Officer has advised that this authority operates an 
alternate weekly kerbside collection of refuse (green bin) and recycling (black bin) at the 
closest point to the adopted highway.  If this estate is not to be adopted, a letter of indemnity 
for waste collection contractors to access the site, this would initially be from the developer 
and once the site is completed a further letter from whoever will manage the estate.  Each 
individual domestic property will require 1 x 240 litre refuse bin and 1 x 240 litre recycling bin, 
plus a 38 litre glass box.  These will need to be purchased by the resident or the developer 
direct from our contractors Biffa on 01962 670706.   



Plot 1 will need to bring their bins out to their parking spaces.  Plots 2-5 will need to bring their 
bins out to a collection point at the turning head.  It is recommended that this advice is 
included as an informative to the applicant.

To conclude, the Local Highway Authority has confirmed that it has no objection to the 
proposal.  The development is considered to be in accordance with the aims of policy CP31 of 
the JCS and the Council’s adopted Vehicle Parking Standards SPD.

6.  Impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents

To the south-east of the site is a terrace of affordable units approved under the original 
permission.  The approved plans show Plot 1 adjacent to the site as a two storey end terrace, 
which has a dual aspect.  As originally submitted, the ground and first floor windows in the 
north-west elevation of this adjacent dwelling would overlook two living room windows in the 
side elevation of the proposed bungalow to the detriment of future occupiers of that dwelling.  
Amended plans have been received which remove the windows from this elevation of the 
proposed bungalow and relocate these in the south-western elevation.  With these 
amendments, the relationship between these properties would be acceptable.

The bungalow proposed at Plot 2 is located 21 metres from the side elevation of the approved 
end terraced property.  Thus while there would be some overlooking towards this dwelling, 
the separation distance would meet best practice guidance.  

To the south-west of the development is the produce growing area for Applegarth Farm, with 
the former driving range buildings further to the west.  With the scale of the proposed 
dwellings and there siting, there would be no adverse impact on these neighbouring uses.

Internally within the development, the proposed dwellings would be positioned to have an 
acceptable relationship with one another in relation to considerations of overlooking / 
overbearing impacts.

For these reasons the proposed development is considered to be in accordance with Policy 
CP27 of the JCS in this regard.

7. Impact on Biodiversity.

The site itself is not subject to any ecological designations, however, it falls within the 400 m 
to 5 km buffer around the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA.  The application is supported by a 
Phase 1 Habitat Survey (Jonathon Cox Associates: August 2014).  

The County Ecologist has noted that the site is currently a site compound and devoid of 
vegetation, therefore raises not concerns with regards to ecological measures.  For this 
reason the proposal is in accordance with Policy CP21 of the JCS.



The site is located within the 400 metre to 5 km buffer around the Wealden Heaths Phase II 
SPA.  The application is supported by a Habitat Regulations Assessment and supplementary 
Shadow Habitats Regulations Screening [Ecosupport Ltd: 25 September 2019].

The Local Planning Authority, as the competent authority, has undertaken a Habitats 
Regulations Screening Assessment, based on the HRA, where is it is concluded that the 
development, both individually or in combination with other development, would not have an 
adverse impact on the integrity of the SPA.  As such a formal Appropriate Assessment is not 
required to be undertaken by the Local Planning Authority.  The development, therefore, is in 
accordance with the aims of Policy CP22 of the JCS, the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPD and 
the Habitats Regulations.

8. Impact on Trees

A copse of trees protected by a Tree Preservation Order is located to the north of the site, on 
the opposite side of an access road.  

The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has no objection to the proposal, although advises that 
the Tree Protection Plan is strictly adhered to and the existing protective fencing is not 
removed and remains in situ.

Subject to securing tree protection arrangements through a condition, the proposal is in 
accordance with policy C6 of the Local Plan: 2nd Review.

9.  Drainage 

The Council’s Flood Mapping shows that the site is located in Flood Zone 1 (low probability of 
flooding).  The application is not supported by any drainage information.

The Council’s Drainage Consultant, has commented that the proposals will generate 
increased run-off, which must be attenuated on site and not increase flood risk elsewhere.  
The drainage system must be designed to cater for the 1:100 year + 40% climate change 
event.  It is assumed that foul drainage will discharge to the existing public foul sewer subject 
to Thames Water approval.  No drainage details have been provided and it is not clear how 
the site is to be drained.   As such the Drainage Consultant has objected to the proposal, 
pending further details, which must include a drainage layout plan, run-off calculations for the 
peak event, all supported by site percolation tests to BRE 365.  A detailed maintenance 
management plan, generally in accordance with the SUDS Manual is also required.

Details for the disposal of surface water for the main development have previously been 
approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The site is directly adjacent to recently constructed 
dwellings, so it is considered that the drainage could in principle be similarly constructed.  As 
such it is considered that satisfactory details could be secured through a condition, and the 
Drainage Consultant has agreed with this approach.  The applicant has agreed to securing 
these details through a pre-commencement condition.



For these reasons it is considered that the development is in accordance with the aims of 
CP25 of the Joint Core Strategy.

10.  Sustainable Construction

Following changes to national legislation in respect of the Code for Sustainable Homes, the 
Council seek residential development to incorporate measure that provide at least 10% of 
energy demand from decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy systems.  The 
application is not supported by any information in relation to sustainable construction, 
therefore a condition should be attached to any approval to require details of such energy 
requirements to be submitted and approved prior to commencement of development and 
subsequent implementation / verification of said measures.  Such a condition would be 
required in order for the development to comply with the requirements of Policy CP24 of the 
JCS.

11.  Financial Contributions and CIL

The proposal would result in 5 new dwellings and in accordance with the adopted Joint Core 
Strategy Policies CP16, CP18, CP31, CP32 and East Hants Local Plan Policy T2 provision 
should be made for public open space, community facilities and transportation improvements.

Following the adoption of CIL in 2016, contributions towards the above items are secured 
through CIL, as opposed to tariff based contributions secured through a planning obligation.  
The dwellings will be CIL liable, although an affordable housing exemption may be pursued 
through the relevant procedures. 

A Planning Obligation under S.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 will be 
required to secure the provision of the affordable housing units.  

Response to Parish/Town Council Comments

Grayshott Parish Council has objected to the grounds of the loss of green space to any form 
of housing. 

The issues relating to the loss of the allotment site and green space have been discussed in 
section 2 of the above report.

Conclusion

The application site falls outside of the Settlement Policy Boundary (SPB) for Grayshott and 
thus within an area where the Countryside policies of the Development Plan apply.  In this 
instance the applicant is promoting the scheme as 100% affordable housing under the rural 
exceptions policy, CP14, and the Council’s Housing Officer is in support of the scheme.  The 
principle of the development of affordable housing units in this Countryside location is, 
therefore accepted.



The proposal would result in the loss of allotments approved as part of the Applegarth Farm 
development.  It has been confirmed that there is sufficient capacity for allotments in the area 
to meet existing and future local needs.  There is a significant amount of green space 
provided as part of the development and no other suitable community recreational use has 
been identified, thus criterion (a) of Policy CP17 is satisfied.  It is also noted that the proposal 
would deliver 5 units of affordable accommodation, which would be a public benefit.  It is 
concluded that the loss of the allotments to affordable housing is accepted.

The development is considered to be acceptable in terms of impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring properties, the visual impact within the landscape and the integrity of the Local 
Gap. A Habitat Regulations Screening has concluded that there would be no adverse impact 
on the integrity of the Wealden Heaths Phase II SPA.  No objections have been received from 
consultees in terms of impact on highways, trees, ecology or surface water drainage.

For the reasons set out above the proposal is considered to be in accordance with the 
policies of the development plan.

RECOMMENDATION 

Provided that the applicant enters into a Planning Obligation to secure the provision of the 
affordable housing and this obligation is completed by 24 December 2019, then the Director 
of Regeneration and Place be authorised to grant PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the 
following conditions.

However, in the event that all parties do not enter into a Planning Obligation to secure the 
above matter by this date, then the application will be refused under the adopted scheme of 
delegation unless the Director of Regeneration and Place, in consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for Planning, authorises further time extension(s) for the completion of this obligation.

 PERMISSION subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration 
of three years from the date of this planning permission.
Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990

2 Notwithstanding any indication of materials that may have been given in 
the application or in the absence of such information, no development 
above slab level shall take place on site until samples / details including 
manufacturers details of all the materials to be used for external facing 
and roofing for the development hereby approved have been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details.
Reason - To ensure that the materials used in the construction of the 
approved development harmonise with the surroundings.



3 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details 
shown on the Tree Protection Plan (drawing number 713 Rev B).  The 
agreed protective fencing shall remain in place until the construction of 
the development has been completed.
Reason - To avoid an adverse impact on protected trees within and 
adjacent to the site.

4 The development hereby approved shall not be first brought into use until 
a fully detailed hard and soft landscape and planting scheme for the site 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and in accordance with the recommendations of the 
appropriate British Standards or other recognised codes of good practice.  
These works shall be carried out in the first planting season after practical 
completion or first occupation of the development, whichever is earlier, 
unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be 
replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size 
and number as originally approved unless a suitable alternative species 
are otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality and to 
enable proper consideration to be given to the impact of the proposed 
development on existing trees.

5 No development shall commence on site until details of a scheme for foul 
and surface water drainage has been submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  Such details should include 
provision for all surface water drainage from parking areas and areas of 
hardstanding to prevent surface water from discharging onto the highway 
and should be based on site investigation and percolation tests.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
before any part of the development is first occupied and shall be retained 
thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for drainage. It is considered 
necessary for this to be a pre-commencement condition as such details 
need to be taken into account in the construction of the development and 
thus go to the heart of the planning permission.
Note: The applicant is requested to contact the Council's Drainage 
Consultant as soon as possible to discuss the details required for the 
discharge of the above condition.



6 Before the occupation of each of the dwellings hereby approved, 
provision for vehicle parking to serve that dwelling shall have been made 
within the site in accordance with the approved plans and shall be 
retained thereafter.  The visitor parking spaces shown on the approved 
plans shall be provided prior to the occupation of the final of the five 
dwellings and shall be retained for visitor parking thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate on-site car parking provision for the 
approved development.

7 No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until 
details for the on site provision of bin and cycle storage facilities have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall not be occupied until the bin and cycle 
storage has been constructed in accordance with the approved details 
and thereafter retained and kept available.
Reason - To ensure the adequate provision of on site facilities.

8 No development shall commence above slab level until a scheme has 
been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority 
to demonstrate that the built development hereby permitted incorporates 
measures that provides at least 10% of energy demand from 
decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy sources. 

Before any part of the development is first occupied a verification report 
and completion certificate shall be submitted in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority confirming that the built development hereby permitted 
has been constructed in accordance with the approved scheme. 

The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of 
assessing and providing the above required report and certificate to 
confirm that the completed works incorporate such measures as to 
provide these requirements.  The measures shall thereafter be retained 
and maintained to the agreed specification for the lifetime of the 
development. 
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary 
mitigation and adaptation measures with regard to climate change.

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans and particulars:

Application form
CIL Form - additional information
CIL Form 1 - Assumption of Liability
Design and Access Statement
Phase 1 Habitat Survey
Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment
Drg no. S101 - Location plan



Drg no. 713 Rev B - Tree Protection plan
Drg no. P101 Rev D - Proposed floor plans, elevations, street scene and 
site layout

Reason - To ensure provision of a satisfactory development

Informative Notes to Applicant:

1 In accordance with paragraphs 38 and 39 of the NPPF East Hampshire 
District Council (EHDC) takes a positive and proactive approach and 
works with applicants/agents on development proposals in a manner 
focused on solutions by:
offering a pre-application advice service,
e) updating applicant/agents of any issues that may arise in the 

processing of their application and where possible suggesting 
solutions.

In this instance, the applicant was:
f) provided with pre-application advice,
 updated of any issues after the initial site visit,
amendments and supplementary information was supplied by the 
applicant.

2 The proposed development referred to in this planning permission is a 
chargeable development liable to pay Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) under Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 and the CIL Regulations (as 
amended)

In accordance with CIL Regulation 65, East Hampshire District Council 
will issue a Liability Notice in respect of the chargeable development 
referred to in this planning permission as soon as practicable after the 
day on which planning permission first permits development.  Further 
details on the Council’s CIL process can be found on the East Hampshire 
District Council website:
http://www.easthants.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/Planning%20C
ontributions%20and%20CIL%20Supplementary%20Planning%20Docum
ent%20-%20April%202016.pdf

3 The Council's Refuse and Recycling Team has advised that this authority 
operates an alternate weekly kerbside collection of refuse (green bin) 
and recycling (black bin) at the closest point to the adopted highway.  If 
this estate is not to be adopted we would require a letter of indemnity for 
our waste collection contractors to access the site, this would initially be 
from the developer and once the site is completed a further letter from 
whoever will manage the estate.



Each individual domestic property will require 1 x 240 litre refuse bin and 
1 x 240 litre recycling bin, plus a 38 litre glass box. We offer an optional 
chargeable garden waste collection service.  Communal properties have 
the option of either individual bins or communal bins. This would need to 
be discussed with the Joint Client Team and the developer.  This 
authority does not provide receptacles free of the charge, these will need 
to be purchased by the resident or the developer direct from our 
contractors Biffa on 01962 670706.

This authority should be given one month notice prior to the first 
occupation in order for collections to commence.   Residents will need to 
take their receptacles to the agreed collection point by 7.00am on the day 
of collection.
 Plot 1 will need to bring their bins out to their parking spaces.
Plots 2-5 will need to bring their bins out to a collection point at the 
turning head.

CASE OFFICER: Stephen Wiltshire 01730 234229
———————————————————————————————————————



SECTION 1   Item 1, Applegarth Farm, Headley Road, Grayshott, GU26 6JL

Block plan



SECTION 1   Item 1, Applegarth Farm, Headley Road, Grayshott, GU26 6JL

Proposed layout plan

Proposed street scene





PART 2

SOUTH DOWNS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

PLANNING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 

Applications to be determined by the council on behalf 
of the South Downs National Park Authority

24 October 2019

SECTION 1 – SCHEDULE OF APPLICATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

Item 01

Report to Planning Committee
Date 24 October 2019
By Director of Planning
Local 
Authority East Hampshire District Council

Application 
Number SDNP/19/03704/CND

Applicant Mr Ashcroft

Application

Variation of conditions number 1 and 3 of permission SDNP/14/01956/FUL 
to allow substitution of plans A1621/LOC, A1621/LOC2, A1621/01 REV A , 
A1621/03 REV A, A1621/04 REV A , A1621/05 REV A and A1621/06 REV 
A with new plans 
Block and Location Plans - 1901-PL-001 A, Proposed Floor Plans - 1901-
PL-004, Proposed Floor Plans - 1901-PL-005, Approved and Proposed 
Elevations - 1901-PL-006 A, Approved and Proposed Elevations - 1901-
PL-007 A, Approved And Proposed Elevations - 1901-PL-008 A, Approved 
and Proposed Elevations - 1901-PL-009 and Approved and Proposed 
Elevations - 1901-PL-010, Approved floor plans - 1901-PL-002 A, 
Approved floor plans - 1901-Pl-003. 

Address New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne, GU34 3BY

Recommendation: That the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out in paragraph 10 of this report.
IMPORTANT NOTE: This application is liable for Community Infrastructure Levy.



Executive Summary

This application is included on the agenda under the Council’s Constitution as the 
applicant is an East Hampshire District Councillor.

1 Site Description

The application relates to a group of what were redundant farm buildings on the northern side 
of Honey Lane, to the east of the village of Selborne. The buildings were formally associated 
with New Barn Cottage, which is immediately to the east of the but this is now in separate 
ownership. The buildings are single-storey and laid out in a courtyard style. Land to the rear 
of the site drops dramatically into a valley, providing long-distance views towards the north. 
The surrounding area is predominantly characterised by fields and farmland with scattered 
housing and complexes of farm buildings. The nearest building to the west of the site is a 
dwelling known as The Granary. Planning permission was granted in 2014 to convert most of 
the range of outbuildings into two dwellings. Some parts of the buildings were to be 
demolished and part of the barns retained. Works are underway on the conversion. 
 
2  Proposal

Planning permission was granted in 2014 for the conversion of a group of redundant farm 
buildings at New Barn Farm to form two dwellings. Vehicle access to the site is from Honey 
Lane and parking is to be provided to the front of the buildings and in an open car port 
between the two dwellings. On the eastern side of the site, there is a farm shed which was to 
have one bay removed to form an access to the back, but is otherwise be retained. Part of the 
cattle sheds to the rear have been demolished as part of the scheme. This permission has 
been implemented and therefore remains extant.

Both dwellings are shown to have four bedrooms. One dwelling has been formed from the 
main barn and part of the cartshed and part from the dairy and part of the cartshed.

This is an application for variation of the approved plans, to alter a number of details on the 
approved dwellings. The main changes would be, the addition of a conservatory in what was 
an open yard area for one of the dwellings, the use of what were to be car ports for one of the 
dwellings as a lounge, the demolition of one of the bays of a barn so that the two dwellings 
would be detached (and the second dwelling slightly reduced in size), addition of solar panels, 
addition of an entrance porch and amendments to some of the fenestration details (involving 
both addition and removal of windows). There are also changes proposed to the approved 
materials, which would change the appearance of the converted buildings. Works to add the 
conservatory have been carried out as part of the on-going building on site, but the porch has 
not yet been added.



3 Relevant Planning History

SDNP/53136/001 - Permission granted in 2011 for conversion of redundant farm 
buildings to form one dwelling and two holiday lets.

SDNP/14/01956/FUL - Permission granted in 2014 to convert redundant farm buildings to 
form two dwellings.

4  Consultations 

Parish Council Consultee - Objection to planning application at New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, 
Selborne.

Selborne Parish Council - objects to the planning application on the grounds that the proposal 
does not comply with the requirements of SDNP Local Plan Policy SD8. In particular:

' Development proposals must demonstrate that all opportunities to reduce light pollution have 
been taken and must ensure that the measured and observed sky quality in the surrounding 
area is not negatively affected. The proposal fails this test because of the many large glass 
windows and roof lights that will emit light into and affect the Dark Night Sky;

' The purpose of Policy SD8 is to ensure that development does not harm the quality of dark 
night skies, and encourages enhancement of the dark night skies of the National Park, for the 
benefit of people and wildlife. The proposal pulls in the exactly the opposite direction;

' The policy applies to any proposals where the design of developments may result in light 
spill from internal lighting. There will be significant light spill from the large number of large 
glass windows and from the large number of roof lights;

' In the darkest areas (which applies to the site), where control is more important, the overall 
impact of the lighting should not harm the continuity of the dark landscape and ideally not be 
visible in any direction or in any form such as glare, skyglow, spill and reflection. The proposal 
fails this test due to the large glass windows and roof lights which will cause glare, skyglow, 
light spill and due to the solar panels which will cause glare and reflection;

' It is necessary to consider the visibility of the lights from the surrounding landscape 
particularly from viewpoints. The site and proposal overlooks the valley where there are public 
footpaths (Via Canonorum and Hangers Way)

' Paragraph 5.61 states that the spill of lights from large open glass windows and sky lights 
often present a greater source of light pollution than externally mounted lights and 
consequently it is important to control the lighting coming from these types of development; 
and the design of buildings should reduce the impact of light spill from internal lighting' But 
this proposal will lead to light spill from internal lighting.



Policy SD8 sets out the requirements that are needed to protect the Dark Night Sky. The 
proposal in the planning application does not fulfil any of them. The Parish Council therefore 
voted to object to the application.

5  Representations

None received

6  Planning Policy Context

Applications must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The statutory development plan in this area is the South 
Downs Local Plan 2014-2033 and any relevant minerals and waste plans. Other plans 
considered:

 The development plan policies and other material considerations considered relevant to 
this application are set out in section 7, below.

National Park Purposes

The two statutory purposes of the SDNP designation are:

 To conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural heritage, 
 To promote opportunities for the public understanding and enjoyment of the special 
qualities of their areas.

If there is a conflict between these two purposes, conservation takes precedence. There is 
also a duty to foster the economic and social well being of the local community in pursuit of 
these purposes. 

7  Planning Policy 

Relevant Government Planning Policy and Guidance 

Government policy relating to National Parks is set out in English National Parks and the 
Broads: UK Government Vision and Circular 2010 and The National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) which was issued on 24 July 2018. The Circular and NPPF confirm that 
National Parks have the highest status of protection, and the NPPF states at paragraph 172 
that great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty 
in national parks and that the conservation and enhancement of wildlife and cultural heritage 
are also important considerations and should be given great weight in National Parks.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

The following National Planning Policy Framework documents have been considered in the 
assessment of this application: 



NPPF:
2. Achieving sustainable development
4. Decision Making
5. Delivering a Sufficient Supply of homes
11. Making Effective Use of Land
12. Achieving well designed places
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

The development plan policies listed below have been assessed for their compliance with the 
NPPF and are considered to be compliant with the NPPF.

The following policies of the South Downs Local Plan are relevant to this application:
 Core Policy SD1 - Sustainable Development
 Core Policy SD2 - Ecosystems Services
 Strategic Policy SD4 - Landscape Character
 Strategic Policy SD5 - Design
 Strategic Policy SD8 - Dark Night Skies
 Strategic Policy SD9 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity
 Strategic Policy SD10 - International Sites
 Strategic Policy SD19 - Transport and Accessibility
 Development Management Policy SD22 - Parking Provision
 Strategic Policy SD25 - Development Strategy
 Development Management Policy SD41 - Conversion of Redundant Agricultural or 

Forestry Buildings

Partnership Management Plan

The South Downs Partnership Management Plan (SDPMP) was adopted on 3 December 
2013. It sets out a Vision and long term Outcomes for the National Park, as well as 5 year 
Policies and a continually updated Delivery Framework. The SDPMP is a material 
consideration in planning applications and has some weight pending adoption of the SDNP 
Local Plan. 

8  Planning Assessment

Determining Issues

1. Principle of the proposal
2. Design and appearance
3. Impact on the natural beauty and enjoyment of the South Downs National Park
4. Access and parking
5. Impact on neighbouring residents
6. Energy conservation and eco-system services
7. Community Infrastructure Levy
8. Nature conservation



Planning Considerations 

1. Principle of the proposal

The principle of conversion of the barns into two dwellings has already been approved in 
2014. At that time the Local Plan consisted of the EHDLP: Second Review and EHDLP:JCS. 
The Local Plan is now the South Downs National Park Local Plan. However, as the 
permission for the development has been implemented it remains extant and the principle is 
therefore not being considered in this application, which seeks to amend details on the plans. 
Policy SD41 of the SDNPLP is therefore only relevant as far as these proposed amendments 
are affected by it. Criterion f) requires that there is no adverse impact on the character of the 
building and its setting. The impact of the proposed changes to the approved scheme would 
have on the character of the building and on the setting will be considered, as will its impact in 
terms of other relevant policies such as SD2 (Ecosystem Services), SD5 (Design) and SD8 
(Dark Night Skies).

2. Design and appearance

The barns were originally a largely attractive group of traditional buildings, although in need of 
renovation. The approved conversion works were judged to be sympathetic to the character 
of the buildings.

Most of the approved conversion works were to be achieved through repair and alteration of 
the buildings, utilising the existing structures and with no extensions. There has been quite 
substantial reduction of built form on the site, with old cattle shed structures to one side and 
the rear being demolished. The current proposal follows the same principles, but with a 
further area of demolition to separate the two dwellings that have been permitted, the addition 
of a conservatory in the rear corner of the westerly dwelling and the addition of a small 
entrance porch to the easterly dwelling. There would also be alterations to the approved 
fenestration and the addition of solar panels on some of the roof slopes. Alterations to 
external materials are also proposed. Timber cladding is now proposed to be replaced by 
black cement-based weatherboarding and there is use of reclaimed local stone in more of the 
elevations.

An area that was previously approved as a car port for the westerly dwelling is now proposed 
to be a lounge, with north facing windows added to that room. That, and the glazing to the 
new conservatory would add fairly significant new glazing to the proposal, particularly in the 
north elevation.

It was considered that the approved scheme was sensitively designed and that the 
appearance of the site within the South Downs National Park would be enhanced. 



The amended scheme does not alter the overall scope of the proposal, but amends details. 
Most of the changes to the fenestration are fairly minor, with two rooflights being added and 
one made larger. There are also some changes to ground floor windows, with the main 
changes being the glazed conservatory walls to the north and west and the additional 
windows in the northerly elevation of the westerly dwelling. It should be noted that the 
'conservatory' would be roofed in slate and would have a brick plinth, so it would not be a fully 
glazed structure. It would infill what was previously an open courtyard area, which would have 
had smaller glazed doors providing access into it. 

This small conservatory extension is comparatively minor compared with the area of barns 
that have been demolished, and it would link what would otherwise be two separate parts of 
the house together. The small porch to the easterly dwelling would add a somewhat domestic 
feature to the converted barn, but is not considered to be so prominent as to warrant a 
recommendation of refusal.

Policy SD8 of the South Downs National Park Local Plan seeks to conserve and enhance the 
intrinsic quality of dark night skies. Development proposals must demonstrate that all 
opportunities to reduce light pollution have been taken. If lighting cannot be avoided then 
adverse impacts should be mitigated to the greatest reasonable extent. Lighting is of course 
necessary in a dwelling, and no external lighting has been proposed. The addition of 
significant glazing in the northern elevation would add to potential impact on dark night skies 
and it is recommended that further boundary planting and mitigation to reduce light spillage 
from these windows be required by condition to reduce any impact in the wider area. This 
would also be supported by SDNPLP Policy SD5, criterion e). 

The overall design changes are considered to be in accordance with SDNPLP Policy SD5 f) 
in terms of design and detailing. Policy SD41 states that conversions of redundant agricultural 
buildings should not need 'significant extensions', so minor extensions are not ruled out. The 
design and access are considered to be in accordance with Policy SD41 of the SDNPLP. 
Overall, it is not considered that the proposed amendments to the approved scheme would 
make it unacceptable in terms of the SDNPLP Policies.

3. Impact on the natural beauty and enjoyment of the South Downs National Park

The conversion scheme has been carefully thought-out and sensitively designed and it was 
considered that the original scheme would enhance the appearance of the buildings and the 
overall site. The impact on the natural beauty and the purposes of including the area within 
the South Downs National Park would be protected.



4. Access and parking

The highways issues have been assessed by Hampshire County Council Highways and there 
is no objection to the proposal, subject to conditions. The visibility splays were found to be 
acceptable, due to the nature of the lane, which does not allow vehicles to overtake when 
approaching the site. The access has not been changed in this proposal from that previously 
approved. The proposal would lead to the loss of two parking spaces in what would have 
been a carport. However, there was parking shown on the original site plans in the area to the 
front of the barns (four spaces). The dwellings would have four bedrooms each, therefore two 
additional spaces would be required. There is ample space on the site for these, and it is 
recommended that these be required to be provided by condition.

The proposal would be accordance with SDNPLP Policy SD22.

5. Impact on neighbouring residents

There is one very close neighbouring dwelling. The proposal would have less impact in terms 
of noise and odours than previous uses for cattle and as a farrier's premises. 
This proposal for two dwellings would also have less impact in terms of noise and movement 
than the previously approved scheme for one dwelling and two holiday lets. The proposed 
amendments are not considered to alter the impact on neighbours' amenities. The impact on 
amenity would be acceptable in accordance with SDNPLP Policy SD5.

6. Energy conservation and Ecosystem Services

The original permission included a condition requiring the use of renewable energy or other 
suitable energy saving measures. Policy SD2 of the SDNPLP states that development 
proposals should have an overall positive impact on the ability of the natural environment to 
contribute goods and services. Opportunities should be taken to protect and provide habitats, 
conserve water resources, mitigate against climate change, reduce pollution. The current 
amended drawings show the inclusion of solar panels, and the application includes an 
ecosystem services statement. It is stated that the proposal makes use of existing redundant 
buildings, it would not increase water run-off, new native boundary hedging would be 
provided, energy usage would be minimised as far as possible. It is not considered that the 
amendments that are currently being considered would have any significant impact in terms 
of the impact on the natural environment and that the proposals would be in accordance with 
SDNPLP Policy SD2.

7. Community Infrastructure Levy

The original permission was determined before the introduction of CIL. The proposed uplift in 
floorspace would not exceed the 100 sq m threshold, thus the development would not be 
liable for CIL. 



8. Nature conservation

Bat surveys have previously been carried out on the site, which have found evidence of bats 
roosting in some of the buildings. A survey report has, therefore, been prepared, which 
includes details of mitigation measures to be undertaken, including the provision of alternative 
roosting opportunities within the refurbished buildings. The report was updated prior to the 
last planning permission being granted and a condition was recommended on the original 
permission regarding the implementation of bat protection measures. This requirement would 
remain with the current proposal.

9 Conclusion

The proposed development is to amend an approved scheme which seeks to bring vacant 
buildings into a viable long-term use and would enhance the appearance of the site. 
Adequate parking would be provided on-site and mitigation measures would be implemented 
to ensure no harm to bats. The scheme would have no significant impact on the amenities of 
any neighbouring residents and would accord with the relevant policies of the South Downs 
National Park Local Plan.

10 Reason for Recommendation and Conditions

It is recommended that the application be Approved for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions set out below.

1. Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the plans listed 
below under the heading "Plans Referred to in Consideration of this Application".
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2. The development shall be carried out using the materials previously approved on 
SDNP/14/01956/FUL, except where these details are amended by the drawings approved as 
part of this application.
Reason - To ensure that the materials used in the construction of the approved development 
harmonise with the surroundings.

3. Before any part of the development is first occupied, a verification report and completion 
certificate shall be submitted in writing, to the Planning Authority, confirming that the built 
development, hereby permitted, incorporates measures that provide at least 10% of the 
predicted energy requirement from on-site renewable sources, or, provided that first agreed in 
writing by the Planning Authority before development starts on site, an alternative means of 
achieving an equivalent energy saving.
The developer shall nominate a competent person for the purpose of assessing and providing 
the above required report and certificate to confirm that the completed works incorporate such 
measures as to provide the required energy savings.



The energy-saving works set out in the above report shall thereafter be maintained so that the 
required energy saving is sustained at the certified level for the lifetime of the development. 
(Note:- The carbon savings which result from these measures are required to be above and 
beyond any savings provided by measures incorporated into the development to comply with 
Part L Building Regulations). 
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates necessary mitigation and adaptation 
measures with regard to climate change.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) 
no development falling within Classes A to E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 shall be carried out 
without the prior consent of the Planning Authority, through submission of a formal planning 
application 
Reason - In order that the Planning Authority can properly consider the effect of any future 
proposals on the character and amenity of the locality having regard to the rural location 
where restrictive policies apply.

5. Before use of the development is commenced provision for the turning and parking of 6 
vehicles shall have been provided, and this shall thereafter be retained.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety.

6. The approved development works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
drainage details under SDNP/14/01956/FUL before any part of the development is first 
occupied and shall be retained thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision for surface water drainage and avoid discharge of 
water onto the public highway.

7. The lines of sight splays shown on the approved plans shall be kept free of any obstruction 
exceeding 1 metre in height above the adjacent carriageway and shall be subsequently 
maintained so thereafter.
Reason - To provide satisfactory access and in the interests of highway safety.

8. The dwellings hereby approved shall not be first occupied until the section of the existing 
access from the site to Honey Lane has been permanently stopped up and effectively closed, 
with the footway provided or verge reinstated, in accordance with details which have been 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety.

9. Any gates provided shall be set back a distance of 4.5m from the edge of the carriageway 
of the adjoining highway.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety.

10. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details of bin and cycle 
storage approved under SDNP/14/01956/FUL before the dwellings are first occupied and 
shall be retained thereafter.
Reason - To ensure adequate provision within the site.



11. The road access construction shall be carried out in accordance with the details approved 
under reference SDNP/14/01956/FUL prior to the first occupation of the development.
Reason - To ensure that the roads and footpaths are constructed to a satisfactory standard.

12. The landscaping and planting approved under reference SDNP/14/01956/FUL shall be 
carried out in the first planting season after practical completion or first occupation of the 
development, whichever is earlier, unless otherwise first agreed in writing by the Planning 
Authority. This shall be supplemented by additional native planting on the northern boundary, 
which shall be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years after planting, are removed, die or 
become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably 
practicable with others of species, size and number as originally approved unless otherwise 
first agreed in writing by the Planning Authority.
Reason - In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality, to avoid light spillage from the 
site and to enable proper consideration to be given to the impact of the proposed 
development on existing trees.

13. All bat mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the details agreed 
under SDNP/14/01956/FUL, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason - To provide ecological protection and enhancement in accordance with Conservation 
Regulations 2010, Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, NERC Act 2006, NPPF and Policy C21 
of the recently-adopted East Hampshire District Local Plan: Joint Core Strategy.

14. Prior to the installation of the proposed windows in the northern elevation of the lounge 
and the northern and western elevations of the conservatory serving the westernmost 
dwelling, details of mitigation methods (in accordance with the SDNP Dark Skies Guidance) 
for windows hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The mitigation method agreed by the Local Planning Authority shall be 
permanently used and maintained thereafter. 
Reason - To protect the character of the countryside, and the designated International Dark 
Night Reserve, which is part of the special quality of the South Downs National Park, in 
accordance with National Park Purposes and the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

11. Crime and Disorder Implications 
11.1 It is considered that the proposal does not raise any crime and disorder implications. 

12. Human Rights Implications 
12.1 This planning application has been considered in light of statute and case law and any 
interference with an individual’s human rights is considered to be proportionate to the aims 
sought to be realised. 

13. Equality Act 2010 
13.1 Due regard has been taken of the South Downs National Park Authority’s equality duty 
as contained within the Equality Act 2010. 



14. Proactive Working 
No contact with agent necessary.

Contact Officer: Nicky Powis 

Tel: 01730 234226

email: nicky.powis@easthants.gov.uk

Appendices Appendix 1 – Plans Referred to in Consideration of this 
Application

SDNPA Consultees

Background 
Documents
 
Plan Type Reference Version Date on Plan Status

Application Form - Application 
Form 31.07.2019 Approved

Application Documents - CIL 
Form Additional Information 20.08.2019 Approved

Application Documents – 
Ecosystem  Services Statement 27.08.2019 Approved

OS Extract - Location and 
Block plan 1901-PL-001   A A20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved floor plans 1901-PL-002 A 31.07.2019 Approved

Plans - Proposed floor plans 1901-PL-004 20.08.2019  Approved

Plans - Proposed floor plans 1901-PL-005 20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved and proposed 
elevations

1901-PL-010 20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved and proposed 
elevations

1901-PL-006 A 20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved and proposed 
Elevations 1901-PL-007 A 20.08.2019 Approved



Plans - Approved and Proposed 
elevations

1901-PL-008 A 20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved and proposed 
elevations

1901-PL-009 20.08.2019 Approved

Plans - Approved floor plans 1901-PL-003 20.08.2019 Approved

Reasons - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.



Part 2 Item 1, New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne

Previously approved floor plans



Part 2 Item 1, New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne

Proposed floor plans



Part 2 Item 1, New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne

Approved east elevation

Proposed east elevation



Part 2 Item 1, New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne

Previously approved north elevation

Proposed north elevation


	Agenda
	 
	6. Future Items
	7.(i) 27202/037/FUL/SAW - Applegarth Farm, Headley Road, Grayshott, Hindhead, GU26 6JL
	8.(i) SDNP/19/03704/CND - New Barn Farm, Honey Lane, Selborne, GU34 3BY

